
Michelle Morris, 
Managing Director / Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr 

 
T: 01495 355100 Ext./Est: 5100 
 
E: leeann.turner@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk 
 
Contact:/Cysylltwch â: Democratic Services 

 

 
 

 

 
 

THIS IS A MEETING WHICH THE PUBLIC ARE ENTITLED TO ATTEND 

 
12th November 2021 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
CORPORATE OVERVIEW SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee will be held as a 
Hybrid Meeting: Via MS Teams/Abraham Derby Room at the General Offices, 
Ebbw Vale - if you would like to attend please contact 
committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk on Friday, 19th November, 2021 
at 10.00 am. 
 
Please note that a pre and post meeting will be held 30 minutes prior to 
the start and following the conclusion of the meeting for members of the 
committee. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Michelle Morris  
Managing Director 
 
AGENDA Pages 
 
1.   SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION 

 
 

 You are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a  

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

minimum notice period of 3 working days is required 
should you wish to do so.  A simultaneous translation 
will be provided if requested. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AND 
DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 To consider any declarations of interests and 
dispensations made. 
 

 

4.   MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2022/2023 
TO 2026/2027 
 

3 - 42 

 To consider the report of the Chief Officer Resources. 
 

 

 
To: Councillor S. Healy (Chair) 

Councillor M. Cook (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor P. Baldwin 
Councillor G. Collier 
Councillor M. Cross 
Councillor G. A. Davies 
Councillor L. Elias 
Councillor J. Hill 
Councillor J. Holt 
Councillor H. McCarthy 
Councillor C. Meredith 
Councillor J. P. Morgan 
Councillor G. Paulsen 
Councillor T. Smith 
Councillor S. Thomas 
 

 All other Members (for information) 
Manager Director 
Chief Officers 

Page 2



Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer:  

 

Committee:  Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting: 19 November 2021 

Report Subject: 
 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/2023 to 
2026/2027 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr. Nigel Daniels, Leader of the Council 

Report Submitted by: Rhian Hayden, Chief Officer Resources 
 

Reporting Pathway 
Directorate 

Management 
Team 

Corporate 
Leadership 

Team 

Portfolio 
Holder / 

Chair 

Audit 
Committee 

Democratic 
Services 

Committee 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Executive 
Committee 

Council Other 
(please 
state) 

 28/10/21 12.11.21   19/11/21  25/11/2021  

 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and the latest assessment of the 
Council’s financial position over the next 5 years. 
 

2. Scope and Background 
 

2.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS),is a key element within the 
Council’s strategic planning framework.  It is this financial framework which 
will support the Council’s financial resilience and ensure it operates 
sustainably. 

  
2.2 The MTFS brings together all known factors affecting the Council’s financial 

position and forms the basis for decision making. The MTFS includes a 
forward look over the next five years to assess the spending requirements 
the Council is likely to face to deliver the priorities set out in the Corporate 
Plan and highlights the level of cuts (reducing or stopping services) that will 
need to be made to ensure the Council can set a balanced budget each 
year.  

  
2.3 The MTFS proposes the approach that the Council will take to respond to 

the financial challenges we face over the next five year period. This will be 
an iterative process and one that will develop and be refined as our funding 
position from Wales Government becomes clearer and strategic business 
reviews are further developed and implemented. 

  
2.4 On the 27 October 2021 the UK Government concluded its one year 

spending review, and it is anticipated that Wales Government will announce 
their budget and the provisional Local Government Settlement on 22 
December 2021, with the final settlement due 1 March 2022.  Having the 
provisional settlement so late in the financial year has implications for the 
budget setting process for 2022/2023 and planning for setting a balanced 
budget. 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



  
 

  

3. Options for Recommendation  
 

3.1 Option 1 –  That Members of Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee :- 

 Consider the MTFS  

 Note the forecast funding gap for the period of the MTFS; 

 Note the cost pressures identified at Appendix 1 of the MTFS; 

 Note the forecast financial achievement for the Strategic Business 
Reviews attached at Appendix 2 of the MTFS. 
 

Option 2 – Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee provide comments and 
challenge the assumptions in the MTFS and the progress made to the 
Bridging the Gap Programme. 
 

4. Evidence of how does this topic supports the achievement of the 
Corporate Plan / Statutory Responsibilities / Blaenau Gwent Well-
being Plan 
 

4.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a key element within the 
Council’s strategic planning framework and supports the delivery of the 
priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 

  
5. Implications Against Each Option  

 
5.1 Impact on Budget (short and long term impact) 

 
5.1.1 Based upon the assumptions in the MTFS and the cost pressures identified 

in Appendix 2,  a budget gap of £21m over the next 5 years is forecast as 
follows: 

  
Table 1: MTFS Budget Gap 
 

2022/2023 
£m 

2023/2024 
£m 

2024/2025 
£m 

2025/2026 
£m 

2026/2027 
£m 

Total 
£m 

6.7 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 20.7 
 

  
5.1.2 The Council’s ability to progress a number of the Strategic Business 

Reviews have been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. An update on the 
overall current financial assessment towards the budget gap is currently 
assessed as £6.8m over the period of the MTFS as follows: 
 

 Table 2: Estimated Financial Achievement of the Strategic Business 
Reviews 
 

 
 

Estimated Achievement 

2022/2023 
 

£m 

2023/2024 
 

£m 

2024/2025 
 

£m 

2025/2026 & 
2026/2027 

£m 

Strategic 
Business 
Reviews 

 
2.69 

 
1.18 

 
1.26 

 
0.8 

 

Page 4



  
 

  

  
5.1.3 Based on the current estimated achievement from the Strategic Business 

Reviews compared to the budget gap identified in the MTFS, there is a 
residual budget gap as follows: 
 

 Table 3: Residual Budget Gap 
 

 2022/2023 
 

£m 

2023/2024 
 

£m 

2024/2025 
 

£m 

2025/2026 & 
2026/2027 

£m 

Residual 
Budget Gap 

 
4.00 

 
2.36 

 
2.29 

 
2.7 

 

  
5.1.4 Bridging the Gap remains the council’s medium/long term strategy to 

address the budget gaps currently identified.  Additional proposals will be 
developed to mitigate the possible residual funding gaps in future years. 

  
5.2 Risk including Mitigating Actions 

 
5.2.1 The assumptions built into the MTFS may change over time e.g. pay & 

inflation rates, service demand, Revenue Support grant and Council Tax 
levels. 

  
5.2.2 The Council’s current MTFS contains a number of assumptions which 

impact on the level of its income and expenditure. Changes in these 
assumptions can have a fundamental effect on the budget gap over the 
next 5 years. The impact of a 1% change on our main assumptions has 
been calculated and can be seen in the following table:- 

  
Table 4 – Sensitivity Analysis 
 

Assumptions within the MTFS +/- 1% 
£’000 

ISB – Cash flat 466 

AEF – Cash flat 1,204 

Council Tax  368 

Non-Employee Inflation  621 

Pay  472 
 

  
5.2.3 There is a risk that the current Strategic Business reviews do not identify 

sufficient financial benefits to Bridge the Gap in the medium to long term. 
Additional / alternative proposals will therefore be required. 

5.2.4 Progress against predicted delivery of Bridging the Gap proposals form part 
of the budget monitoring arrangements.   

  
5.2.5 These risks are also mitigated by regularly reviewing the assumptions and 

revising the MTFS to reflect updated information. MTFS will be updated 
following announcement of the local government settlement. 

  
 

Page 5



  
 

  

5.3 Legal 
 

5.3.1 The Council must set a balanced budget on an annual basis. The MTFS & 
Bridging the Gap proposals will support this requirement. 

  
5.4 Human Resources  

 
5.4.1 Not applicable for this report. 
  
6. Supporting Evidence  
6.1 Performance Information and Data  
  
6.1.1 The attached Medium Term Financial Strategy & Bridging the Gap provides 

information for Members consideration. 
  
6.2 Expected outcome for the public 
  
6.2.1 The MTFS will support the Council in the development of  its annual 

budgets which in turn will allow the Council to deliver services to the public. 
  
6.3 Involvement (consultation, engagement, participation) 
  
6.3.1 
 
 
6.3.2 
 
 
6.3.3 

Officers & Members of the Council are involved in the development of the 
MTFS & Bridging the Gap Strategic Business Reviews. 
 
The proposals have/will be considered by the appropriate Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Public engagement will be undertaken as part of the budget setting 
process. 

  
6.4 Thinking for the Long term (forward planning)  
  
6.4.1 The MTFS forecasts the financial position of the Council for a 5 year period 

and provides information upon which the Council can plan for the future. 
  
6.5 Preventative focus  
  
6.5.1 Included within the Bridging the Gap programme is a proposal focussing on 

an evaluation of the long term impact of prevention and early intervention 
on reducing the requirement for high cost services and better outcomes for 
our most vulnerable residents. 

  
6.6 Collaboration / partnership working 
  
6.6.1 Achievement of the Bridging the Gap proposals will require cross Council 

working and collaboration / partnerships with other stakeholders. 
  

 
 

Page 6



  
 

  

6.7 Integration(across service areas) 
  
6.7.1 Bridging the Gap proposals have been developed across the Council and 

are crosscutting in nature.  
  
6.8 
 
6.8.1 

Decarbonisation and Reducing Carbon Emissions 
 
The Council is committed to the Decarbonisation Plan to achieve a carbon 
neutral public sector by 2030 and the Bridging the Gap programme 
includes the strategic business review, Low Carbon 

  
6.9a Socio Economic Duty Impact Assessment  

N/A 
  
6.9b EqIA 
  
6.9b.1 Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken on the opportunities taken 

forward as part of the Bridging the Gap proposals. 
  
7. Monitoring Arrangements  
7.1 The MTFS & Bridging the Gap will be considered by Scrutiny and Council 

as part of the Council’s financial planning arrangements. 
  
  
 Background Documents /Electronic Links  

 Appendix 1 – Cost Pressures 

 Appendix 2 – Bridging the Gap 

 Appendix 3 – Capital Programme 
 

  
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 

2022/2023 to 2026/2027 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



  
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Contents 

 Page No. 

  

Introduction 3 

Corporate Plan 3 

Revenue Settlement 4 

2021/2022 Revenue Budget 5 

Key Planning Assumptions 9 

Medium Term Financial Forecast 12 

Cost Pressures 14 

Sensitivity Analysis 18 

Bridging The Gap Programme 19 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Schools 21 

Reserves Strategy 22 

Capital Programme 24 

Risks 25 

Appendix 1 – Cost Pressures 28 

Appendix 2 – Bridging The Gap 29 

Appendix 3 – Capital Programme 30 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



  
 

3 | P a g e  
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), the Council’s key 
financial planning document, is an integral part of the Council’s 
Corporate Business Planning arrangements. The Strategy is a rolling a 
5 year plan and is updated, reviewed and approved annually by Council.  
The Strategy will change over time as new opportunities, or policy 
decisions affect the financial position of the Council. 
 

1.2 The MTFS includes a forward look over the next five years to assess 
the spending requirements the Council is likely to face to deliver its 
priorities and the level of cuts i.e. reducing or stopping services that will 
need to be made to ensure the Council can set a balanced budget each 
year.  It provides guidance for officers and Members on the short, 
medium and longer term financial challenges and enables advance 
financial planning to be carried out, assisting the Council to understand 
and meet future demands.  Planning now to meet known or anticipated 
changes in the future provides greater opportunity to phase in the 
impact of the changes. 
 

1.3 The Strategy sets out how the Council will finance its priorities, having 

regard for the Corporate Plan. 

2. Corporate Plan 

  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 

The Council’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic provided the Council 
an opportunity to build on the positive work carried out to strengthen 
and modernise the Council, adopting new working practices and 
challenging how things were done before, in order to map out an 
ambitious future, create a stronger organisation and to sustain the 
strong relationships forged with communities and partners.  
 
This has led to the Corporate Plan being refreshed and enhancing our 
One Council approach. The Council approved the Corporate Plan 2020-
2022 in July 2020 and this sets out the Council’s Vision, Values and 
Outcomes and these are: 
 
Our Core Vision: 
Proud Heritage 
Strong Communities 
Brighter Future 
 
 
 

Page 11



  
 

4 | P a g e  
 

Our Core Values: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.3 Our Outcome Statements: 

 

 Protect and enhance our environment and infrastructure to benefit 
our communities 

 Support a fairer sustainable economy and community 

 To enable people to maximise their independence, develop 
solutions and take an active role in their communities 

 An ambitious and innovative council delivering the quality 
services we know matter to our communities. 

  
3. Revenue Settlement – Recent Trends 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021/2022 revenue settlement was the second consecutive year that 
the Council received an increase in the Revenue Support Grant (before 
transfers in and new responsibilities) from Welsh Government. 
 
The Council’s revenue settlements for the period 2016/2017 to 
2021/2022 and forecast of future settlements is shown in Figure 1. This 
illustrates the actual cash impact and the impact excluding transfers into 
the settlement for grants and new responsibilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proud & 

Ambitious 

Ambit 

Trust & 

Integrity 

Working 

Together 

Fair & 

Equitable 

Raising 

Aspirations 

Page 12



  
 

5 | P a g e  
 

 Figure 1: Trend in Aggregate External Funding 
  
 

 
  

3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 

The graph demonstrates that on a cash basis the funding received 

from Wales Government has increased overall by £11.1m between 

2016/17 and 2021/22.  However, in real terms, when Grants 

transferring into the settlement and new responsibilities are excluded, 

the funding increase is reduced to £6.9m. In cash terms RSG has only 

increased by £3.2m since 2013/2014 from £117m to £120m. 

This when combined with increased demand for services and 

increasing costs have contributed to the financial challenge the council 

has faced in delivering its services to the residents of Blaenau Gwent. 

3.5 2021/2022 Revenue Budget 

3.6 The baseline revenue funding the Council received in 2021/2022 from 

Welsh Government after allowing for transfers was £120m, an 

-£951
-0.86%

-£273
-0.25%

+£1,371
+1.26%

+£464
+0.42%

+£5,200
4.76%

+£4,297
+3.7% +£0

-£1,683
-1.53%

-£351
-0.32% -£858

-0.79%

-£175
-0.16%

+£4,100
+3.85%

£4,223
+3.7% £0

 100,000,000

 105,000,000

 110,000,000

 115,000,000

 120,000,000

 125,000,000

2015/20162016/20172017/20182018/20192019/20202020/20212021/20222022/2023

Aggregate External Funding

AEF AEF Before Transfers In & New
Responsibilities

Page 13



  
 

6 | P a g e  
 

increase of 3.6% (£4.2m).  The all Wales increase in the Local 

Government Settlement was 3.8%. 

3.7 In setting the 2021/2022 budget, the Council agreed:-  

 All grants transferring into the Settlement would be transferred to 

the relevant service 

 Additional funding of £2.2m to be built into the budget, over and 

above pay and price inflation, to address existing and emerging 

cost pressures 

 Bridging the Gap proposals of £0.76m    

 A contribution to the General Reserve of £0.2m 

 Contribution to a specific reserve to support medium term 

financial planning - £1.05m 

 Council Tax increase of 3.3% 

 
3.8 For the current financial year, the Council agreed a net budget 

requirement of £157m.  The budget allocation across Portfolios is 

shown in figure 2 below: 

 Figure 2: 2021/2022 Revenue Budget per Portfolio (£’000) 

 

 
 

3.9 The graph shown in figure 3 shows the direct costs of delivering 
services across portfolios. 
 

Corporate Services
£4,292 

3%

Financial 
Management

£12,021 
8%

Cross Cutting
£2,189 

1%

Social Services 
£46,250 

29%

Schools
£46,522 

29%

Education - Other
£13,187 

8%

Leisure
£4,396 

3%

Economy
£1,549 

1%

Environment
£26,242 

17%

Planning
£1,277 

1%

Licensing
£107 
0%

Page 14



  
 

7 | P a g e  
 

 Figure 3: 2021/2022 Direct Service Costs per Portfolio (£’000) 
 

 

 
 

 *Other includes: 

 Capital charges - £8m 

 Fire & Apprenticeship Levy – £3.8 m 

 Council Tax Reduction Scheme - £9.9m 

 IT, Administration Buildings & Insurance - £5.9m 

 Cross Cutting Budgets - £2.2m 

 Other - £1m. 
 

3.10 In addition, to the agreed net budget, the Council spends a further £28m 
per annum to support the delivery of services. The Council receives 
specific revenue grant to fund this expenditure. 
The assumption within the MTFS is that all grants will continue at the 
current level, and any reduction or termination of grant will be offset by 
a reduction in service expenditure.   
 

3.11 Specific revenue grant allocations across Portfolios is shown in figure 

4 below and shows the estimated level of grant awards for 2021/2022 

(based on 2020/2021 levels). 

 

 

 

 

Corporate Services
£8,805 

6%
Finanical 

Management
£1,581 

1%

Social Services
£41,596 

26%

Schools
£46,552 

29%

Education - Other
£8,696 

5%

Leisure
£3,239 

2%

Economy
£381 
0%

Environment
£15,506 

10%

Planning & 
Licensing

£839 
1%

Other
£30,867 

20%

Page 15



  
 

8 | P a g e  
 

 Figure 4: Specific Revenue Grant Funding Per Portfolio 2021/2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

3.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.13 

The global Covid-19 pandemic and the response had a significant 
impact on the Council both financially and on the delivery of services 
throughout 2020/2021.  The changing circumstances during 
2020/2021 saw a number of services being suspended or being 
delivered in an alternative way.  Council buildings have been closed to 
the public, staff have been working from home where possible and/or 
redeployed to support front line services and the Council has 
established a new local Test, Trace and Protect Service as part of the 
regional pandemic response. 
 
Welsh Government provided significant one-off financial support to 
both reimburse additional costs borne by the Council as a result of the 
required response to the pandemic and also compensate for loss of 
income incurred due to closure of facilities and the suspension of 
services.   
 

3.16 The 2020/2021 outturn position was positive for the Council, allowing 
for an increase in both earmarked reserves and the General reserve.  
This places the Council in a much better position to respond to 
increased levels of risk. 
 

3.17 Welsh Government continues to provide financial support to Local 
Authorities for the current financial year.  However, there remains 
uncertainty as to the full impact of the pandemic in the medium/long 
term with no guarantee of funding after March 2022. 

Corporate Services
£1 m
4%

Economy
£1 m
5% Education - Other

£2m
7%

Schools
£7 m
24%

Environment
£3 m
11%

Social Services 
£13 m
49%

Page 16



  
 

9 | P a g e  
 

4. Review and Update of the MTFS 

4.1 The MTFS must be regularly reviewed to ensure preparedness from a 

financial planning perspective.  The review will include considering 

and updating assumptions used in the Strategy to reflect new / 

emerging information for example inflation, changing demographics, 

service demand and policy changes and more recently the ongoing 

financial impact of Covid-19 on  service delivery. 

4.2 The table below identifies the key assumptions included in the MTFS. 

 Table 1: Key Financial Planning Assumptions 

  

 Financial Planning Key Assumptions 

Pay Non-Teaching staff – The pay award offer for 
2021/2022 is 1.75%, however no agreement has 
been reached with the unions currently balloting 
members. 
 
Therefore, being prudent, 2% has been assumed for 
2022/2023 onwards.  
 
Teaching Staff:  
 
Teaching staff have been awarded a pay rise of 
1.75% from September 2021.   
  
2% pay award has been assumed for 2022/2023 
onwards. 

 
Incremental Pay Progression – the estimated cost of 
annual pay progression has been applied based on 
existing staffing 
 
Pension – Based on the actuarial revaluation in 
2019/2020 for LGPS employer pension contributions 
(non-teaching), a 1% per annum increase has been 
recommended and assumed for 2022/2023 onwards. 
 
Vacancy Factor of 1.5% has been built into staffing 
budgets to reflect the financial impact of staff 
turnover. 

Page 17



  
 

10 | P a g e  
 

Price 
Inflation 
(Non 
Schools) 

The Consumer Price Index (CPI) increased to 3.2% 
in August 2021, and this was a result of the lifting of 
restrictions following the Covid-19 pandemic.  It is 
expected that this will reduce to its previous 2% level 
over the remainder of the MTFS. 
 
Forecasts for the UK economy: A comparison of 
independent forecasts (August 2021), suggests the 
annual CPI to be: 
 

 Independent 
Forecasts 

Office for Budget 
Responsibility (OBR) 

  March 2021 October 2021 

2022 2.8% 1.8% 4% 

2023 2.2% 1.9% 2.6% 

2024 2.1% 1.9% 2.1% 

2025 2% 2% 2% 

 
The Bank of England has a target of 2% CPI Inflation. 
 
The continued uncertainty with Covid-19 and exiting 
the EU is having an impact on the economy with 
disruption to food supplies and staff shortages which 
could have an impact on consumer prices. 
 
It is proposed to maintain the annual inflationary 
increase in the MTFS at 2%, (in line with the Bank of 
England’s target) and include as a cost pressure the 
financial impact from any short term increases. 
 
Utilities – Headline figures are indicating an increase 
in energy prices of 40% from April 2022, however, this 
is a volatile and changing picture.  Therefore, 2% per 
annum has been included in the MTFS and the 
financial impact of price increases will be monitored 
and reported as part of cost pressures. 
 
Income Inflation – Increase in discretionary fees and 
charges in line expenditure inflation above. 
 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme – This has been 
increased in line with the assumed increase in 
Council Tax of 4.0%.  

Page 18



  
 

11 | P a g e  
 

Schools 
Growth 
(ISB) 
 

No inflationary increase has been applied to the 
Individual Schools Budget (ISB), a cash flat budget 
has been assumed for the term of the MTFS in line 
with the assumption for Welsh Government funding. 
 
Projected increases or decreases in pupil numbers 
will impact upon the ISB and based on September 
2021 data collection and projecting the pupils through 
the year groups: 
 

 Increase / 
(Decrease) in 
Pupils 

Financial 
Impact  
Increase / 
(Decrease) in 
Funding 
(£’000) 

2022/2023 114 543 

2023/2024 12 (83)* 

2024/2025 102 507 

2025/2026 -64 (138) 

2026/2027 -16 (53) 

 *The decrease in funding is due to a shift in pupils 
from Secondary to Primary and the Age Weighted 
Pupil Unit is lower for Primary schools. 
 
The financial impact has been included on the Cost 
Pressure appendix. 

 

Specific 
Grant 
Funding 

This has been assumed to remain at the 2020/2021 
level (as identified on the Revenue Grants Register) 
and excluding Hardship Funding. 
It is assumed that any reduction in funding is offset by 
a reduction in expenditure.   
 

Capital 
Financing 

Capital Financing – Capital financing costs reflect 
the schemes within the current capital programme, 
with borrowing costs for future schemes funded from 
either USB (Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing) or 
prudential borrowing.  For 2022/2023 onwards, it has 
been assumed that there is no change to the capital 
adjustment in the MTFS.  This will be updated in line 
with the revised MRP charge following the re-
calculation of the MRP as a result of the Policy 
Review. 

Page 19



  
 

12 | P a g e  
 

Council Tax   Council Tax increased by 3.3% in 2021/2022.  For 
planning purposes, it has been assumed that 
Council Tax will increase by 4% per annum. 

 (1% increase will generate approximately £354,000 
additional funding). 

 

 No additional funding has been assumed at this 
stage from an increase in the Council Tax Base for 
2022/2023 onwards.  This will be reflected in the 
Growth proposals within the BtG proposals. 
 

Estimated 
Funding 
reduction 
(Aggregate 
External 
Funding) 
 

Welsh Government does not currently provide funding 
forecasts for future years.  2021/2022 saw an 
increase of 3.6% (£4.2m) in AEF (after allowing for 
transfers of grant into the settlement).  
 
For planning purposes, a cash flat budget for Blaenau 
Gwent has been assumed for the next 5 years. 
 

Reserves The financial modelling assumes a minimum 
contribution to General or specific reserves of 
£200,000 per annum. 

 

  

4.3 Medium Term Financial Forecast 

4.4 The table below identifies the funding gap after applying the above 

assumptions to the 2021/2022 approved Estimates. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



  
 

13 | P a g e  
 

 Table 2: Assessed Budget Gap  

 Medium Term Budget Gap  
2022/2023 

£’000 
2023/2024 

£’000 
2024/2025 

£’000 
2025/2026 

£’000 
2026/2027 

£’000 

Draft Expenditure      

Draft Estimates 160,860 163,936 167,078 170,287 173,564 

Revenue Grants 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 

Assumed Savings 0 (2,458) (4,004) (5,555) (7,110) 

Adjusted Draft 
Budget 

188,860 189,478 191,074 
 

192,732 
 

194,454 

      

Draft Funding      

AEF 120,360 120,360 120,360 120,360 120,360 

Council Tax 38,242 39,772 41,363 43,017 44,738 

Revenue Grants 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 28,000 

Total Draft 
Funding 

186,602 188,132 189,723 191,377 193,098 

      

Budget Gap (2,258) (1,346) (1,351) (1,355) (1,356) 

Contribution to 
Reserves 

(200) (200) (200) (200) (200) 

Adjusted Funding 
Gap 

(2,458) (1,546) (1,551) (1,555) (1,556) 

 

  

4.5 The table identifies a potential funding gap of £8.6m over the next 5 

years should the Council continue to deliver services in their existing 

form and before considering cost pressures. 

4.6 Additional Costs Built into the MTFS 

4.7 The draft estimates have been prepared based on the approved 

2021/2022 budget and increased in line with the assumptions included 

in Table 1, and these costs are detailed in the table below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



  
 

14 | P a g e  
 

 Table 3: Estimated Additional Costs Compared to 2021/2022 Budget 

 2022/2023 
£’000 

2023/2024 
£’000 

2024/2025 
£’000 

2025/2026 
£’000 

2026/2027 
£’000 

Pay, Increments and 
Pension Inflation 

1,698 1,727 1,757 1,787 1,817 

General Inflation –       

Third party 
Expenditure 

1,242 1,267 1,292 1,318 1,344 

Fees & Charges (322) (328) (335) (341) (348) 

Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme 

396 412 428 445 463 

Capital Charges 1,981 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 4,995 3,078 3,142 3,209 3,276 
 

  
4.8 New and Emerging Cost Pressures 

4.9 New and emerging Cost Pressures and Growth items have been 

assumed at £2m per annum for 2023/2024 onwards based on cost 

pressures awarded over the last few years.  As more detail emerges 

on potential cost pressures during this period, the detail will be 

included on the cost pressures Appendix. 

4.10 In identifying the Cost Pressures and Growth items for 2022/2023, 
consideration have been given to: 

 Covid-19 and the potential additional / increased costs arising 
from the response to the pandemic as the Council and the 
economy recovers 

 Cost pressures identified as part of the 2021/2022 financial 
reporting within overspending portfolios 

 Changes in demand for services 

 New services/ responsibilities 

 Changes in legislation/policy 
 

4.11 Covid-19 Pandemic 
 

4.12 The Council has received significant financial support during 2020/21 
and 2021/2022 to fund the additional costs and loss of income 
incurred in responding to the pandemic. 
 

4.13 As the Council continues to respond and recover from the pandemic 
and services return to “business as usual”, it is anticipated that the 
additional costs being incurred will diminish and funding for ongoing 
costs will need to be absorbed into the Council’s budget, as there is 
no guarantee that WG will continue to fund these cost pressures past 

Page 22



  
 

15 | P a g e  
 

March 2022 into 2022/2023.  These costs have been included on 
Appendix 1 - Cost Pressures & Growth. 
 

4.14 The impact the pandemic has had on the economic environment, 
resulted in an increase of 5.3% in new applications for council tax 
support between March and July 2021.  However, as restrictions have 
been lifted, there has been a decline in the number of claimants:  
 
Table 4: Analysis of Claimants for Council Tax Support 
 

As at No. of Claimants % Increase 
(compared to 

28/02/2020 
 

28/02/2020 8,883  

31/3/2020 8,907 0.3% 

20/07/2020 9,356 (peak) 5.3% 

06/04/2021 9,268 4.3% 

20/09/2021 8,958 0.8% 

 
 

4.15 The current forecast is an underspend on the Council Tax Reduction 
Budget (based on Quarter 2 2021/2022), however this will need to be 
monitored to assess the impact that the end of the job retention 
scheme, on 30 September 2021, will have on unemployment within 
the borough and the number of claimants eligible for CTRS. 
 

4.16 The longer term impact of Covid-19 and exiting the EU upon the wider 
economy of Blaenau Gwent, Wales and the UK remains uncertain.  
Unemployment in Wales increased to 4.6% (as at September 2020) 
from 2.7% before the pandemic hit.  There has been a decline in the 
rate of unemployment as restrictions have been eased to 4.1% (as at 
June 2021).  However, as mentioned above, the end of the Job 
Retention Scheme in September 2021 may result in a further potential 
increase in unemployment. 
 

4.17 2021/2022 Cost Pressures 
 

4.18 Current in year cost pressures have been reviewed to assess the 
likely continuation into 2022/2023.   An assessment has also been 
undertaken to evaluate the portfolios ability to mitigate cost pressures 
from within existing budgets e.g. budget realignment.  
 

Page 23



  
 

16 | P a g e  
 

4.19 Service Demand 
 

4.20 Education – The pupil population data is collected at the end of 
September.  Any increase will require an increase in funding to the 
Individual School Budget.  As identified in Table 1 – Key Planning 
Assumptions, pupil population has increased significantly between 
September 2020 and September 2021 and the current forecast is that 
the pupil population will continue to increase over the medium term.   
 

4.21 This increase is as a result of positive parental choice in placing their 
children in Blaenau Gwent schools, as well as the impact of the 
Growth Strategy and increased house building within the borough 
attracting new families. 
 

4.22 This will have an impact on school funding and the revenue support 
grant received from Welsh Government in future years. 
 

4.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Social Services (Adults) – Payments made to Community Care 
commissioned services, decreased by 1% (£0.2m) between 
2019/2020 and 2020/2021, (this comparison excludes the additional 
financial support funded from the Welsh Government Hardship Fund) 
and in-house provision decreased by 4% (£0.3m).  This can be 
attributed to the impact of the pandemic on social care, and a 
reduction in the number of service users, however demand for 
services are already increasing following the easing of restrictions. 
 

4.24 Historically, Blaenau Gwent has not seen an increase in the demand 
for clients accessing social care services.  Between 2016/2017 and 
2018/2019, the impact of the Council’s strategy of prevention and 
early intervention is that the total clients receiving services reduced by 
261 (9.9%). However, the fragility of the social care market, including 
the recruitment and retention of staff, as it recovers from the 
pandemic, and the loss of financial support from the Welsh 
Government Hardship fund, could lead to increased costs for the 
Council to ensure that there is sufficient capacity within the sector to 
meet demand. 
 

4.25 The increase in the Social Care Grant for 2021/2022 and the Social 
Care Recovery Grant are assisting with the management of increased 
costs within existing budgets.  There is no indication that these grants 
will continue into 2022/23, therefore, the financial impact in future 
years will need to be continually reviewed. 
 

Page 24



  
 

17 | P a g e  
 

4.26 
 
 
 
 

Social Services Children’s – The number of Children Looked After 
continues to decline with an overall reduction of 23 children between 
April 2019 (218) June 2021 (195), and the number of children in 
residential care has reduced from 17 to 11 (as at September 2021), 
this is as a result of the preventative services established over the last 
few years including the Supporting Change Team and the My Support 
Team. 
 

4.27 The most significant cost pressure currently within Children’s Services 
is the cost of legal fees, expenditure was £1.1m in 2020/2021 and it is 
forecast to remain at this level for 2021/2022.  A cost pressure was 
awarded during the budget setting process for 2021/2022 of £350,000, 
however, this remains a cost pressure with a forecast overspend of 
£363,000. 
 

4.28 These costs are currently being managed within the overall budget for 
the Social Services Portfolio and the Council is exploring alternatives 
to mitigate these costs in the longer term. 
 

4.29 
 
 
 
 
 
4.30 

Environment – Waste and Recycling Services – Waste Services is 
a reactive service and has overspent against budget for the last few 
years due to increasing costs and volatility in the market for the sale of 
recyclate. 
 
To achieve future WG targets for recycling (70% by 2024/25) will 
require the service to increase / expand Waste and recyclate 
collected.  This will potentially impact upon budgets and will need to 
be monitored carefully. 
 

4.31 Changes in Legislation/Policy 
 

4.32 National insurance contributions paid by both employees and 
employers will increase by 1.25% from April 2022 and is designed to 
fund the Health & Social Care crisis following the pandemic.  The 
potential additional cost relating to Council staff, schools and 
commissioned services within Social Care have been included on the 
Cost Pressure list.  There may also be a knock on impact on other 
services commissioned by the Council. 
 

4.33 The Minimum Living Wage is currently £8.91 per hour (age 23 & over), 
in his 2021 Budget the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that 
from April 2022 this would increase to £9.50 (5.7%).  This will result in 

Page 25



  
 

18 | P a g e  
 

increased costs particularly for commissioned services, and a 
potential pressure for the service. 
 

4.34 The cost pressures identified for 2021/2022 is attached at Appendix 1 
with £5.4m being built into the MTFS for 2022/2023.  The table below 
shows the impact the cost pressures have on the funding gap. 
 

 Table 4: Assessed Budget Gap including Cost Pressures 

   

 Medium Term Budget Gap  
2022/2023 

£’000 
2023/2024 

£’000 
2024/2025 

£’000 
2025/2026 

£’000 
2026/2027 

£’000 

      

Funding Gap (2,458) (1,546) (1,551) (1,555) (1,556) 

Cost Pressures 4,235 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Growth      

Adjusted Funding 
Gap 

(6,693) (3,546) (3,551) (3,555) (3,556) 

      
 

 
4.35 

 
The potential funding gap increases to £21m over the next 5 years 
with the inclusion of cost pressures. 
 

4.36 Cost pressures will be reviewed and updated to reflect new /emerging 

information for example the financial impact of Policy decisions and 

cost pressures emerging during the current financial year. 

4.37 Sensitivity Analysis 

4.38 The funding gap identified in table 4 (after allowing for cost pressures), 

is an indication of the financial challenge facing the Council. The 

assumptions used in the financial modelling are uncertain and may 

change over time. 

4.39 Given the uncertainty with the assumptions applied, a range of 
different scenarios have been modelled over the life of the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy and these are shown in the table below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



  
 

19 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Table 5: Sensitivity Analysis 
 

Pay   ISB 
Council 

Tax  
AEF 

Change 
2022/ 
2023 

2023/ 
2023 

2024/ 
2025 

2025/ 
2026 

2026/ 
2027 Total 

 MTFS Assumptions   Funding Gap  

    £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

2% 0% 4% 0% 
          

(6,693)  
       

(3,546)  
           
(3,551)  

           
(3,555 ) 

          
(3,556)  (20,901) 

+/- 1% 
£’000       

472 466 368 1,204             

1.75% 1% 3.5% +1%   (6,021)  
            
(2,874 ) 

             
(2,879) 

        
(2,883)  

             
(2,884)  (17,541)  

1.50% 2% 3.0% +2% 
           
(5,349)  

          
(2,202)  

          
(2,207)  

            
(2,211)  

             
(2,212)  (14,181)  

1.50% 3% 2.5% +3% 
               
(4,795)  

                
(1,648) 

                
(1,653) 

                
(1,657) 

                
(1,658) 

                
(11,411)  

2.00% 3% 2.0% +3% 
             
(5,215)  

            
(2,068)  

                
(2,073)  

                
(2,077)  

              
(2,078)  (13,511)  

2.00% 0% 2.0% -1% 
          
(8,633)  

        
(5,486)  

           
(5,491)  

          
(5,495)  

       
(5,496)  (30,601)  

2.00% 0% 2.5% -2% 
            
(9,653)  (6,506)  

           
(6,511)  

        
(6,515)  

          
(6,516)  

       
(35,701)  

2.00% 0% 3.0% -3% 
         
(10,673)  

           
(7,526)  

           
(7,531)  

           
(7,535)  

           
(7,536)  

       
(40,801)  

 

  
5. BRIDGING THE GAP PROGRAMME 

 
5.1 In recognising the challenges that the Council faces in the short, 

medium and long term, a programme of Strategic Business Reviews 

has been developed to deal with potential gaps between anticipated 

funding and expenditure that aims to build financial resilience.  Based 

on strategic themes our Bridging the Gap programme identifies 

savings opportunities, potential cost avoidance and new revenue 

streams.  Designed to support a balanced budget it is also focussed 

on creating the conditions of a commercially minded council.  This 

includes seeking new revenue streams and ensuring resources are 

aligned to the strategic imperatives of the council. The approach has a 

particular emphasis on: 

 Maximising the potential of income generation by taking a 

commercial approach where it is appropriate to do so; this will 

include exploring opportunities for investment; 

 Effective commissioning, procurement & contract management 

arrangements; 

Page 27



  
 

20 | P a g e  
 

 Exploiting the opportunity that digital and service transformation 

can provide for customers; 

 Making best use of our assets and property; 

 Considering the action we can take to influence and reduce 

demand through our early intervention & prevention approaches; 

 Exploiting the opportunities to strengthen financial resilience by 

supporting growth in the borough 

 We will continue to ensure we have secured all efficiencies and 

are practicing robust “housekeeping” throughout; 

 We will also continue to explore the potential to work differently 

through partnership and collaboration and look for opportunities 

to support residents to do more for themselves; 

 
5.2 In setting the budget for 2021/2022, £0.76m was identified through 

the strategic business reviews.  This resulted in a surplus budget of 
£1m which and this was set aside in a specific reserve to support 
medium term financial planning. 
. 

5.3 Appendix 2 provides a summary of the current Strategic Business 

Reviews, and the latest assessment of the estimated financial 

achievement for 2022/2023 to 2025/2026. 

5.4 The Council’s income generation ability has been impacted by the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  The current assessment of the savings that 
could be delivered between 2022/2023 and 2026/2027 is £6.8m and 
the impact on the funding gap (after allowing for cost pressures) is 
shown in the table below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



  
 

21 | P a g e  
 

 Table 9: Assessed Budget Gap and the Impact of Bridging the Gap 

   

 Medium Term Budget Gap   
2022/2023 

£’000 
2023/2024 

£’000 
2024/2025 

£’000 
2025/2026 

£’000 
2026/2027 

£’000 

      

Adjusted Funding 
Gap (with Cost 
pressures) 

(6,693) (3,546) (3,551) (3,555) (3,556) 

      

Estimated 
Achievement - 
BtG 

2,688 1,180 1,262 846 846 

Adjusted Funding 
Gap 

(4,005) (2,366) (2,289) (2,709) (2,710) 

      
  

  
5.5 As future opportunities are identified through these strategic business 

reviews the MTFS will be updated to reflect the impact on each 
financial year.  Some of the reviews will inevitable take longer to have 
an impact but will potentially yield higher returns in the latter years of 
this MTFS. 
 

6. MTFS – SCHOOLS 

6.1 The assumption within the MTFS is that the increase in the Individual 
Schools Budget is linked to the increase in AEF. 
 

6.2 For 2021/2022, the Individual Schools Budget received an uplift of 
3.3%, and this reflected a gross uplift of 3.6%, in line with the Council’s 
increase in AEF, adjusted for a reduction in demographics. 
   

6.3 
 

The table below highlights the potential cost increases in relation to 
school expenditure, compared to assumed funding increases over the 
next 5 years, based on the assumptions identified in table 1 above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



  
 

22 | P a g e  
 

 Table 10: Potential Cost Increases for Schools 

 2022/2023 
£’000 

2023/2024 
£’000 

2024/2025 
£’000 

2025/2026 
£’000 

2026/2027 
£’000 

Expenditure      

Pay increases 863 880 898 916 934 

Pension Increase – 
APT&C 

127 129 132 134 137 

Inflation – non pay 203 207 211 215 219 

Inflation – Utilities  21 21 22 22 23 

Total Expenditure 
Increase 

1,214 1,237 1,263 1,287 1,313 

      
 

  
6.4 The table indicates that schools are potentially facing financial cost 

increases of £1.2m per annum over the next 5 years based on the 

assumptions within the MTFS. A number of cost pressures have also 

been identified on the Cost Pressure appendix, including: 

 Increase in Pupil Demographics – £0.6m 

 Increase in energy Costs - £0.3m 

 Impact of an increase in NI contributions - £0.4m 
 

6.5 
 
 
 

School Balances have been increasing over the last few years, with 

an overall increase of £2.35m when compared to 2019/2020 and 

£3.4m increase when compared to 2017/2018. An analysis across 

sectors is shown in the table below: 

 Table 11 – Actual School Balances (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 

Phase 2017/2018 
£’000 

2018/2019 
£’000 

2019/2020 
£’000 

 

2020/2021 
£’000 

(Provisional) 

Secondary  189 285 336 810 

All Through  (847) (762) (829) (260) 

Primary  857 1,285 1,604 2,744 

Special  81 246 214 387 

TOTAL 280 1,055 1,325 3,681 
 

  
7. Reserves Strategy 

7.1 Financial resilience is a Council priority and this includes ensuring that 

reserves are adequate to be able to respond to unexpected events, 

emerging need or unforeseen budget pressures.  

Page 30



  
 

23 | P a g e  
 

7.2 General reserves are unallocated amounts that enable the Council to 

meet non-specific and/or unforeseen financial liabilities.  

7.3 The Council’s agreed protocol for the management of general 

reserves specifies a target level for general reserves of 4% of the last 

reported actual net revenue expenditure (as included in the Revenue 

Outturn return). 

7.4 The provisional level of the general reserve at 31 March 2021 is 
£7.8m, an in-year increase during the year of £1.42m. This outturn 
position represents 5.78% of net revenue expenditure as reported for 
2020/21, exceeding the target by 1.78%. 
 

7.5 Earmarked reserves are held by the Council to meet potential future 

expenditure on specifically identified risks, liabilities and 

commitments.  

7.6 The Council has an agreed protocol for the establishment, retention, 

management, review and reporting of earmarked reserves. In addition 

to the statutory requirements to consider the adequacy of reserves 

when setting the budget and the extensive disclosures made in the 

Statement of Accounts, member scrutiny has been enhanced by the 

preparation of detailed quarterly monitoring reports. The Chief Officer 

Resources also holds regular meetings during the year to consider the 

ongoing requirement and value of earmarked reserves held.  

7.7 The provisional level of earmarked reserves has increased from 
£8.27m at 1 April 2020 to £20.78m at 31 March 2021 (an increase of 
£12.51m).  
 

7.8 Significant elements of these earmarked sums relate to grant funding 
held in respect of specific projects or services that will be utilised in 
delivering the relevant service outcomes.  
 

7.9 A number of factors have contributed to this exceptional increase, 
including: 
 

 Service underspends resulting from reduced expenditure due to 
closure of facilities, reduced service provision, delays in filing 
vacant posts 

 Receipt of additional specific grants and un-hypothecated grants 
which have offset in year core costs 

Page 31



  
 

24 | P a g e  
 

 Increase in school balances of £2.3m. 
 

7.10 The positive 2020/2021 provisional outturn has enabled the Council to 
establish a number of new reserves and strengthen its financial 
resilience and to assist with the ongoing response to Covid-19 and 
these include: 
 

 An increase of £1m to the Financial Resilience Reserve 

 Establishment of Covid-19 reserve of £2m. 
 

7.11 In setting the 2021/2022 budget, a planned increase in reserves has 
been agreed with a £200,000 contribution to general reserves and a 
further increase of £1.05m to the financial resilience reserve to continue 
to support medium term financial planning.  
 

7.12 It is the Council’s intention to maintain the general reserves at a 
minimum level of 4% and increase the overall level of reserves over 
time to support the Council’s financial resilience. 
 

7.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.14 

Given the current level of the General Reserve, it is not planned to 
utilise any of this reserve to balance the annual budget. The 
continuation of the inclusion of a budget contingency within the annual 
budget setting process is proposed of £200,000 per annum, to allow 
the replenishment of the Council’s useable reserves. 
 
This would result in an increase to reserves of £1m over the period of 
the MTFS. 
 

7.15 It is anticipated that earmarked reserves will reduce during the current 
financial year.  Many of these reserves are short term in nature and 
will be utilised to deliver the intended outcome. 
 

8. Capital Programme 
  
8.1 The 5 year Capital Programme (2019/2020 to 2025/2026) was agreed 

by full Council in October 2019, with a further update being agreed in 
March 2021, to reflect the additional capital investment approvals 
agreed since October 2019, along with the annual Capital Strategy. 
 

8.2 The capital strategy identifies capital funding of: 
 

 2021/22 - £28.7m 

 2022/23 - £31m 

Page 32



  
 

25 | P a g e  
 

 2023/24 – 22.4m. 
 

8.3 A contingency of £1m has been built into the Programme to mitigate 
cost increases and to enable the Council to react to new / changes in 
priorities. 
 

8.4 The Capital Programme is attached at Appendix 2. 
  
9. RISKS 

 
9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Corporate Plan, MTFS and the Bridging the Gap programme are 
designed to complement each other. They provide the narrative that 
describes the outcomes we plan to deliver, the financial envelope we 
intend to work within, and our approach to deliver a balance budget in 
2022/2023 and beyond whilst creating the conditions for improved 
financial resilience. 

9.2 The risks identified with the Medium Term Financial Strategy are: 
 

9.2.1 Covid-19 Pandemic  
 

 Loss of Funding - Welsh Government have indicated that 
funding to support Local Authorities with additional costs in 
responding to and recovering from the pandemic will end on 31 
March 2022.  There is a risk that additional costs will continue 
into 2022/2023. 

 Staff Retention & Recruitment – Recruitment and retention of 
staff within Health and Social Care are having an impact on the 
delivery of services and meeting demand within the community 
and supporting our vulnerable people as well as managing the 
challenge of delivering business as usual. 

 Covid-19 Sickness within Schools – There is currently a 
shortage of supply staff within the sector coupled with increased 
levels of sickness within schools could result in school 
closures/blended learning. 

 Further national lockdowns imposed which will lead to further 
pressures on businesses and households and additional costs 
to the Council in providing support. 

 
9.2.2 Other Economic Risks: 

 

 Increase in Inflation – Over the last year, inflation rose from just 
under 2% to 3.2% and it is anticipated that it could increase to 

Page 33



  
 

26 | P a g e  
 

4% by December 2021.  This will have a financial impact on the 
cost of goods and services procured by the council, local 
businesses and on the disposable income of the residents of 
Blaenau Gwent including food supplies, transport costs and 
utilities. 

 

 Businesses – significant financial support was provided to 
businesses across all sectors during covid restrictions and lock 
down, including business grants, rate relief and furlough.  As 
businesses reopen, they are facing increased costs, staff 
shortages and an end to financial support, which could impact 
on the sustainability of the business and result in 
downsizing/closure, increasing unemployment. 

 
9.2.3 A Covid-19 earmarked reserve has been established for £2m to 

provide financial resilience in the short to medium term. 
 

9.2.4 Uncertainty around future WG Funding levels 
 
The absence of any future year guidance on levels of likely settlement 
from WG makes financial planning into the medium term more 
difficult. 
 

9.2.5 MTFS Assumptions 
 
The budget gap is based on a number of assumptions and any 
changes may have a significant impact on the funding gap. 
 
The assumptions are reviewed and any potential changes monitored.  
Section 4.28 to 4.37 above models the impact on the funding gap for 
a range of scenarios. 
 

9.2.6 Achievement of Bridging the Gap proposals 
 
The achievement of planned savings is monitored as part of the 
budget monitoring & reporting process.  Corrective action is taken 
where adverse variances are identified. 
 

9.2.7 Grant Funding  
 
The MTFS assumes that grant funding remains constant.  Any 
decrease in funding or the termination of grant programmes could 
have a significant impact for the Council, particularly for those grants 

Page 34



  
 

27 | P a g e  
 

that are supporting service provision such as Families First, Flying 
Start, and ICF etc. 
 
The Society of Welsh Treasurers works closely with the WLGA and 
Welsh Government to ensure that grants are maintained or 
transferred into the settlement. 
 
Where grants are reduced, Services will need to ensure that 
expenditure is reduced in line with the grant.  
 

9.2.8 Volume of Demand 
 
Increased demand for services poses significant risks to planning and 
this will be monitored. 

  

  
 
 
 

  

Document History    

Author Version  Date 

G. Taylor Draft v1 CLT  14 October 2021 

G. Taylor Draft v2 CLT  28 October 2021 

G. Taylor Draft  v3 Corporate Overview  

    

    

    
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27

COST PRESSURES & GROWTH (Assessment as at October 2021)

Portfolio Service Description 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Covid -19

Environment Homelessness Temp B&B 200 0 0 0 0

Security 240 0 0 0 0

Education ICT Digitally Excluded Pupils 50 0 0 0 0

Sub Total - COVID-19 490               -                -                -                -                

2021/2022  Cost pressures

Environment Waste 445 0 0 0 0

Education Independent School Fees 0 150 0 0 0

Sub Total - 2021/22 Cost Pressures 445 150 0 0 0

Service Demand

Education ISB Increase/(Decrease) in Pupil 

Population

545 -83 507 -138 -53

Increase in SEN Catorgories - 

PenyCwm Growth

95 93 93 93 0

Sub Total - Service Demands 640 10 600 -45 -53

Changes in Policy / Legislation

Cross cutting Increase in NI 

contributions

Council Staff 600 0 0 0 0

Social Services Community Care 

Uplift

Social Care 1,700           0 0 0 0

Sub Total - Policy/Legislation 2,300           0 0 0 0

Other

Crematoria Income Inpact of new cremetoriums on 

Income

0 70 0 0 0

Cross Cutting Energy Corporate Landlord / 

Streetlighting & MSCPs

265 0 0 0 0

Leisure Management Fees Increase by CPI (3.1%) 30 0 0 0 0

Planning Review of LDP 65 0 0 0 0

Sub Total - Other 360               70                 -                -                -                

TOTAL 4,235           230               600               45-                 53-                 

Included in The MTFS Funding Gap 4,235           2,000           2,000           2,000           2,000           

Page 37



Appendix 1

Cost Pressures & Growth - Schools

Cleaning Additional Cleaning in Schools 470 0 0 0 0

Increase in NI contributions 380 0 0 0 0

Energy 320 0 0 0 0

TOTAL - SCHOOLS 1,170           -                -                -                -                

5,405           230               600               45-                 53-                 

Page 38



Appendix 2

Portfolio Strategic Business Review 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Economy Industrial Units 100                     -                      50                       50                       

Environment Trade Waste -                      64                       96                       96                       

Assets & Property 50                       -                      -                      -                      

Growth Strategy 300                     100                     100                     100                     

Commercial Activity & Investment -                      50                       50                       50                       

Finanical Management Income Recovery -                      -                      -                      -                      

Review of MRP 1,335                  -                      -                      -                      

Social Services Prevention & Early Intervention 153                     416                     416                     -                      

Cross Cutting Fees & Charges 100                     100                     100                     100                     

Third Party Spend 250                     250                     250                     250                     

Low Carbon -                      200                     200                     200                     

Future Place & Service Delivery 400                     -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL 2,688                 1,180                 1,262                 846                     

Bridging The Gap - Current Programme

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22 to 2025/26  Appendix 3  

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

 £ £ £ £ £ £

Social Services

Community Equipment & Adaptations 279,000 279,000 285,000 285,000 285,000 285,000

Minor Works/Health & Safety

279,000 279,000 285,000 285,000 285,000 285,000

Environment

Disabled Facilities Grants & Living Independently HRG 420,000 469,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Corporate Landlord/ Minor Works /DDA 320,000 320,000 280,000 280,000 300,000 300,000

Data Centre Move 152,000

Constrained Units/ Industrial Units Improvement Programme 0 0 300,000 300,000

Big Arch 640,000

Cemeteries 250,000 250,000 300,000 0

1,782,000 1,039,000 780,000 480,000 800,000 800,000

Education

Band B Welsh Medium Remodelling

Band B Secondary School Remodelling 70,000 280,000 1,510,000 750,000 750,000

New 420 place primary in Ebbw Fawr valley 2,100,000 945,000 105,000 0

Band B  Welsh Medium Seedling Provision 350,000 0 0 0

Total 21st Century Schools 2,450,000 1,015,000 385,000 1,510,000 750,000 750,000

Other

Equipment Replacement 0 61,000 61,000 61,000 61,000

Civic Centre Demolition 650,000 0 0

General Offices and Community Hubs 180,000

ICT Investment 161,000 161,000 161,000 161,000 161,000

Highways Investment 912,000 0 0

City Deal Commitments 194,000 1,220,900 2,441,800 0 0 0

Staff Support Recharges 524,000 524,000 524,000 474,000 400,000 400,000

P
age 41



2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

 £ £ £ £ £ £

 

TOTAL 6,059,000 5,150,900 4,637,800 2,971,000 2,457,000 2,457,000

FUNDING  

Capital Programme Funding

USB -1,932,000 -1,905,000 -1,905,000 -1,905,000 -1,905,000 -1,905,000

General Capital Grant -1,938,000 -1,911,000 -1,201,000 -1,201,000 -1,200,000 -1,200,000

Digital Transformation Funding -161,000 -161,000 -161,000 -84,452 0

Highways Capital & Revenue Maintenace Funding -603,000

Useable Capital Receipts Capital Programme -650,000 0 0 0 -327,000 -327,000

Useable Capital Receipts - Separate Projects     

Total Funding -4,520,000 -4,580,000 -3,267,000 -3,267,000 -3,516,452 -3,432,000

Excess expenditure / (Surplus funding) in year 1,539,000 570,900 1,370,800 -296,000 -1,059,452 -975,000

Excess expenditure / (Surplus funding) including brought fwd -557,767 13,133 1,383,933 1,087,933 28,481 -946,519

P
age 42


	Agenda
	4 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/2023 to 2026/2027
	MTFS
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


